
‭City of Baldwin City‬
‭PO Box 86‬

‭Baldwin City, Kansas 66006‬
‭Council Meeting Agenda‬

‭Baldwin City Public Library‬
‭800 7th St‬
‭Baldwin City, KS 66006‬

‭TUESDAY‬
‭November 7th, 2023‬

‭7:00 PM‬

‭A.  Call to Order-Mayor Casey Simoneau‬

‭B.  Approval of Agenda‬

‭C.  Consent Agenda‬
‭1.‬ ‭Minutes 10.17.2023‬

‭D.  Public Comment:‬
‭Members of the public are welcome to comment on items relating to City business not listed on this‬
‭Agenda. Please stand and wait to be recognized by the Mayor. As a general practice, the comments may‬
‭or may not be acted upon by the Council during the meeting, or Council may refer the items to staff for‬
‭follow up.‬

‭If you wish to comment on an item listed on the agenda, a‬‭sign-up sheet‬‭is provided for you to sign in and‬
‭provide your address. You will be called on when the Agenda item of interest is under discussion by the‬
‭Council.‬

‭E.  Special Reports or Presentations‬
‭Peaslee Tech‬

‭F.  Old Business‬
‭1.‬ ‭Trash Bid‬

‭G.  New Business‬
‭1.‬ ‭Senate Bill 163‬
‭2.‬ ‭Conditional Use-404 5th St‬

‭H.  Council Committee Reports‬
‭1.‬ ‭Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable‬



‭City of Baldwin City‬
‭PO Box 86‬

‭Baldwin City, Kansas 66006‬
‭Council Meeting Agenda‬

‭Baldwin City Public Library‬
‭800 7th St‬
‭Baldwin City, KS 66006‬

‭TUESDAY‬
‭November 7th, 2023‬

‭7:00 PM‬

‭2.‬ ‭Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts‬
‭3.‬ ‭Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jerry Smith‬
‭4.‬ ‭Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jerry Smith‬
‭5.‬ ‭Strategic Planning - Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu‬

‭I.  City Administrator and Staff comments‬

‭J.  Council and Mayor comments‬

‭K. Executive Session‬

‭L.  Adjourn‬

‭City Council meets every first and third Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the Library community meeting room.  Council‬
‭work sessions are held the last Tuesday of each month at 7:00 p.m. in the American Legion Hall.‬



‭City of Baldwin City‬
‭Minutes ‬

‭Tuesday, October 17th 2023‬

‭A.‬ ‭Call to Order‬‭ ‬
‭The Baldwin City Council was called to Regular Session at 7:00 p.m. at the Baldwin City‬
‭Public Library, 800 7th Street, with Mayor Casey Simoneau presiding.‬

‭Present were Council Members: Cory Venable, Susan Pitts, Julie Constantinescu, Scott‬
‭Lauridsen, and Jerry Smith. ‬

‭Also, attending:Glenn Rodden-City Administrator; Amara Packard-City Clerk; Lynn‬
‭Meador-Communications Director; Dakota Loomis-City Attorney, and Stu Young-Codes‬
‭Administrator.‬

‭B.‬ ‭Approval of Agenda‬‭ ‬
‭Julie Constantinescu moved and Cory Venable seconded to approve the agenda as‬
‭presented. Motion carried with a vote of 5 yes and 0 no.‬

‭C.‬ ‭Consent Agenda‬‭ ‬
‭1.‬ ‭Minutes 10.03.2023‬
‭2.‬ ‭Special Event-Hometown Halloween‬
‭3.‬ ‭Retail Liquor License renewal-Double A Liquor‬
‭4.‬ ‭CMB License-Gambino’s Pizza‬
‭Susan Pitts moved and Julie Constantinescu seconded to approve the consent agenda as‬
‭presented. Motion carried with a vote of 4 yes and 0 no. Scott Lauridsen abstained since‬
‭he was not present at the last council meeting.‬

‭D.  Public Comment‬‭  ‬

‭E.  Special Reports or Presentations‬
‭Domestic Violence Awareness Month Proclamation‬
‭Mayor Simoneau proclaimed October 2023 as Domestic Violence Awareness Month.‬
‭Maggie Bornholdt, Douglas County Rural Outreach Program Coordinator, thanked the‬
‭council, city staff, and citizens of Baldwin City for being so welcoming and engaged‬
‭working with the Willow.‬



‭Scott Lauridsen asked if their contact information was on the City website for anyone‬
‭needing services. Lynn Meador said it is on the Library’s website, and the city website‬
‭has a link for the Library.‬

‭F.   Old Business‬

‭G.  New Business‬
‭1.‬ ‭MIH Resolution‬

‭This resolution comes from the presentation at the last council meeting. This is for‬
‭the Moderate Income Housing for an apartment complex.‬
‭Julie Constantinescu asked if the resolution could be corrected to read council‬
‭instead of commissioners.‬
‭Julie Constantinescu moved and Susan Pitts seconded to change the resolutions‬
‭wording from City Commission to City Council and to approve the resolution.‬
‭Motion carried with a vote of 5 yes and 0 no.‬

‭2.‬ ‭Trash Bid‬
‭The city sent out an RFP on the website and facebook page requesting trash bids.‬
‭There was only one bid that came back from the current city provider, Green‬
‭Environmental Services.‬
‭Shawn and John with Green Environmental Services explained that they had to let‬
‭the city know that when the contract was up at the end of January of 2024, rates were‬
‭going up. They wanted to give the city enough time to go out for bid. Currently the‬
‭city pays $12.50 per trash customer and $3.50 for each recycling customer. They will‬
‭be going up to $16.99 for trash customers, with one cart, and $3.95 for recycling,‬
‭with everyone being billed for recycling. Or each customer can choose to have‬
‭recycling and it would be $12.00. There would also be an added $5.34 for bulky‬
‭pickup that would be picked up once a month. Customers can put out up to 2 cubic‬
‭yards once a month, on a determined day, and it would be picked up.‬
‭Council discussed that there will be less service for a lot more money and wouldn’t‬
‭feel like they were serving the citizens of Baldwin well by accepting this one bid.‬
‭Council felt it was best to extend accepting bids until Thursday November 2nd at‬
‭3:00. City staff will reach out to garbage companies in the surrounding areas and‬
‭send the RFP to those companies interested in putting in a bid.‬
‭Jerry Smith moved and Cory Venable seconded to table this bid until November 2nd.‬
‭Motion carried with a vote of 5 yes and 0 no.‬

‭H.  Committee Reports‬
‭1.‬ ‭Budget and Finance - Scott Lauridsen/Cory Venable  ‬

‭Next meeting will be 10/20/23 at 7:45 a.m., 2nd floor of City Hall‬



‭2.   Community Development - Cory Venable/Susan Pitts ‬
‭●‬ ‭Met to discuss the Recreation Commission and the Community Center. The‬

‭committee reviewed the questions proposed by the recreation commission and‬
‭came up with responses.‬

‭Next meeting will be 11/10/23 at 4:00 p.m., 2nd floor of City Hall‬

‭3.   Public Safety - Susan Pitts/Jerry Smith‬
‭Next meeting will be on 11/14/2023 at 4:00 p.m.‬

‭4.   Public Works and Utilities - Julie Constantinescu/Jerry Smith ‬
‭●‬ ‭Cleaned out culvert that runs under 1st St. at High. Thanks to Terry Baker and the‬

‭Fire Department for helping.‬
‭●‬ ‭Public works crews have been working on widening the roads in the lower west‬

‭end of the cemetery.‬
‭●‬ ‭The new asphalt roller has been delivered. Was used on the Oakwood Cemetery‬

‭project and it worked great.‬
‭●‬ ‭Sidewalk on N. 6th and State Lake Rd was repaired last week.‬
‭●‬ ‭Crew will be spending most of their time the next two weeks preparing for and‬

‭cleaning up from the Maple Leaf Festival.‬
‭●‬ ‭Met with Ashton-Kate contractors at the pool for a walk through prior to them‬

‭starting on sandblasting and recoating the basin.‬
‭●‬ ‭Park restrooms, fountain and the splash pad will remain open through‬

‭mid-October. The Sullivan restroom will remain open throughout the winter‬
‭months.‬

‭●‬ ‭The Orchard Lane box culvert project was awarded to WCI Construction. They‬
‭plan to start this project this winter. They have until May 2024 to complete the‬
‭project, and 45 days to finish the project from the time they start.‬

‭●‬ ‭Waiting on fish for Hutson’s pond.‬
‭●‬ ‭The concrete work has been completed for the pad for the radiators and silencers‬

‭outside and the pedestal for the generators inside the plant.‬
‭●‬ ‭Jeff will be meeting with Mike from Midstates to discuss the new Substation‬

‭timeline.‬
‭Jerry Smith brought up that Lawrence Street is falling apart on the southbound‬
‭lane.‬
‭Julie Constantinescu said it was also discussed about getting a light at HWY 56‬
‭and Lawrence Ave.‬

‭Next meeting will be 11/09/23 at 9:00a.m.  ‬

‭5.   Strategic Planning - Scott Lauridsen/Julie Constantinescu‬
‭●‬ ‭Community surveys have been sent out, hopefully everyone has received theirs.‬
‭Next meeting will be 11/10/23 at 2:00pm 2nd Floor of City Hall‬

‭I.   City Administrator and Staff Comments‬‭ ‬



‭J.  Council & Mayor Comments‬‭ ‬

‭K. Executive Session‬

‭L.  Adjourn‬‭  ‬
‭Cory Venable moved and Julie Constantinescu seconded to adjourn the regular‬
‭meeting. Motion carried with a vote of 5 yes and 0 no. Time: 8:17 p.m.‬

‭Attest:‬
‭_______________________________‬
‭Amara M. Packard ‬
‭City Clerk‬



 
 

 

Dear Mayor and City Council of Baldwin City KS 

WM is apologetic that we were not able to submit a proposal for the cities solid waste RFP by the deadline 
requested. Our local hauling sites are excited at the opportunity, and we are eager to showcase the quality of our 
services and customer experience. In order to design a service offering for Baldwin City KS there are a lot of internal 
adjustments we need to make. WM is certainly capable, but those calculations and adjustment forecasts take time 
to get right and we were unable to complete them in the short turn around time requested in this bid.  

WM would ask that the city consider awarding the new contract for a one-year period only and re-bid this work 
again next year. If WM is allowed 30 to 60 days to complete this request, we are certain that we could offer a 
competitive bid as well as offer an array of services and value-added extras that would complement and enhance 
your communities.  

Thank you for this opportunity and please consider giving WM another opportunity with a little more lead time, 
again in the near future.  

Sincerely 

John Blessing 

John Blessing  

WM Public Sector Account Executive.  

































































































































































The Kansas Legislature
Kansas State Capitol
300 SW 10th Street
Topeka, Kansas 66612

Dear Representatives and Senators,

The Baldwin City Council supports the passage of SB 163 in the 2024 Kansas legislative

session. Over the years since, Peaslee Tech has become a major component of Douglas County’s

economic development efforts by providing technical training to county residents and area businesses.

The Baldwin City community has directly benefited through the enrollment of Baldwin City adult and

high school students residents in Peaslee Tech programs.

In its inaugural year of 2015, Peaslee Tech had 100 enrollments. In November of 2017, Peaslee

Tech was approved by the Kansas Board of Regents as a non-profit, post-secondary institution. By 2019,

Peaslee Tech had more than 1,800 enrollments. Today, Peaslee Tech offers 27 technical programs and

19 apprenticeships, making it the largest provider of apprenticeship programs in Kansas. Peaslee Tech

has continued to add programs to meet the needs of Douglas County employers.

Since its inception, Peaslee Tech has been primarily funded through annual requests to Douglas

County and the City of Lawrence. We support the opportunity provided by SB 163 for Douglas County

voters to determine the establishment of a special district for the long-term funding of Peaslee Tech,

through a ballot initiative.

Sincerely,



Session of 2023

SENATE BILL No. 163

By Committee on Local Government

2-6

AN ACT creating the Dwayne Peaslee technical training center district act; 
requiring submission of the question of creating the Dwayne Peaslee 
technical  training  center  district  to  the  voters  of  Douglas  county; 
providing for  the establishment  of  such district  and  the powers  and 
duties of its board of directors.

Be it enacted by the Legislature of the State of Kansas:
Section 1. Sections 1 through 7,  and amendments thereto,  shall  be 

known and may be cited as the Dwayne Peaslee technical training center 
district act.

Sec. 2. As used in sections 1 through 7, and amendments thereto:
(a) "Board"  means  the  board  of  directors  of  the  Dwayne  Peaslee 

technical training center district; and
(b) "district"  means  the  Dwayne  Peaslee  technical  training  center 

district, which includes all territory located in Douglas county.
Sec.  3. (a) The board of  county commissioners  of  Douglas  county 

shall submit the question of the creation of the Dwayne Peaslee technical 
training center  district  to  the  voters  of  the  county at  the  next  primary 
election  or  general  election  or  at  a  special  election  called  and  held  in 
accordance with provisions of K.S.A. 10-120, and amendments thereto. 
Upon the adoption of a resolution calling for an election pursuant to this 
section, the county election officer shall cause the following proposition to 
be placed on the ballot at  the election called for that purpose:  "Shall  a 
Dwayne  Peaslee  Technical  Training  Center  district  be  established  and 
authorized to levy a tax not to exceed 0.5 mills  on all  taxable tangible 
property located in the district to fund the budget of the Dwayne Peaslee 
Technical Training Center as determined by the board of directors of the 
district?"

(b) If  the  question  of  establishing  the  district  is  approved  by  a 
majority of those voting on the issue, the existing board of directors of the 
Dwayne Peaslee technical training center shall be dissolved. The board of 
county  commissioners  by  resolution  shall  establish  the  first  board  of 
directors of the district to include a seven-member board, the criteria for 
serving on the board and term of office for members of the first board.

(c) Once appointed, the district board shall select board officers and 
the method of selection and the term of office for future board members.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36



SB 163 2

Sec. 4. All contracts previously entered into by the Dwayne Peaslee 
technical  training  center  shall  be  binding  on  the  district,  and  all 
outstanding bonds, debts and other obligations of the center shall become 
an obligation of the district.

Sec. 5. (a) Each year the board of directors shall meet and organize 
by the election of a chairperson, secretary and treasurer and such other 
officers as the board may deem necessary by a majority vote. The board 
shall fix the date and place of its regular meetings. Special meetings may 
be  called  by  the  chairperson  or  a  majority  vote  of  the  district  board. 
Written notice stating the time, place and purpose of any special meeting, 
unless waived, shall be given to each director at least two days prior to 
such meeting, and no business other than that stated in the notice shall be 
transacted at such meeting. The district board may adopt such bylaws as 
the board may deem appropriate, consistent with the provisions of this act.

(b) The treasurer shall give bond, in an amount fixed by the board. 
The bond shall be filed with the Douglas county clerk. The treasurer shall 
pay out the funds on orders of the board, signed by the chairperson and 
secretary of the board. The treasurer shall keep an accurate record of all 
moneys received and disbursed thereby and make a monthly report thereof 
to the board, or as often as the board requires.

Sec. 6. The district shall constitute a body corporate and politic and 
shall have the power to:

(a) Enter into contracts;
(b) sue and be sued;
(c) acquire, hold and convey real and personal property;
(d) make and adopt rules and regulations for the administration of the 

district;
(e) lease a site or sites and lease a building or buildings for district 

purposes;
(f) acquire material and equipment deemed necessary by the board for 

the maintenance and extension of the technical training center;
(g) employ such persons as the board deems necessary;
(h) receive,  accept  and  administer  any  moneys  appropriated  or 

granted to it by the state, the federal government or private industry;
(i) receive  and  accept  any  gift  or  donation  to  the  district  and 

administer the same in accordance with any provisions thereof; and
(j) make  annual  reports  to  the  board  of  county  commissioners  of 

Douglas county, on or before January 31 of each year for the preceding 
calendar year, showing receipts and disbursements from all funds under its 
control and showing such statistical information relating to students served 
and programs offered.

Sec.  7. (a)  The  district  board  shall  prepare  and  publish  an  annual 
budget for the maintenance and support of the district in accordance with 

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38
39
40
41
42
43



SB 163 3

the provisions of K.S.A. 79-2925 et seq., and amendments thereto.
(b) The board is authorized to levy a tax of not to exceed 0.50 mills 

on  all  taxable  tangible  property  in  the  district  to  fund  the  budget  as 
determined by the district board. The tax shall be levied and collected in 
like manner as other taxes and shall be kept by the district in a separate 
fund. The tax levy shall not be considered a tax levy of Douglas county or 
the city of Lawrence.

Sec. 8. This act shall take effect and be in force from and after its 
publication in the statute book.

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9



Published in Lawrence Journal World on the                   day of                 , 2023 
 

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

 
AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT FOR THE 

ESTABLISHMENT OF A SHORT-TERM RENTAL / AIRBNB WITHIN THE 

CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY OF BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS. 
 

WHEREAS, application has been made by Kyle Carlson and Staci Carlson, requesting a Conditional Use Permit to allow 
the establishment of a Short-Term Rental / Airbnb located on the property at 404 5th Street, Baldwin City, Kansas; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Baldwin City Planning Commission conducted a public hearing following published notification in 
accordance with K.S.A. 12-741, et. seq., as amended, on October 10, 2022; and, 
 
WHEREAS, the Baldwin City Planning Commission has recommended that the City Council of the City of Baldwin City, 
Kansas, not to approve the Conditional Use Permit to allow the establishment of a Short-Term Rental / Airbnb on property 
at 404 5th Street, Baldwin City, Kansas, be approved subject to certain conditions; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF 

BALDWIN CITY, KANSAS, THAT: 
 

SECTION 1. SUBJECT REAL ESTATE.  The following described real estate (the “Subject Real Estate”) is hereby 
generally described as Lots 68 & 70 LESS the South 80 feet on Dearborn Street and addressed as 404 5th 
Street. 

 
SECTION 2. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  A Conditional Use Permit (“CUP”) for the Subject Real Estate is 

hereby approved in accordance with the CUP application. 
 

SECTION 3. CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT.  The CUP is and shall be expressly subject to the following 
conditions of approval: 

 
1. Strict compliance with all applicable zoning and use regulations not modified by the CUP 

 
2. Any failure to comply with the CUP or other applicable zoning and use regulations following notice from the City 

specifying such failure of compliance shall result in revocation of the CUP and all uses permitted by the CUP shall 
cease immediately. 
 

 

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE OF ORDINANCE.  This Ordinance shall take effect on its passage and upon its 
publication as required by law. 

 

Passed by the City Council on                day of              , 2023. 
 
 
___________________________________________ 
Casey Simoneau, Mayor           
 
 
ATTEST:  __________________________________ 
      Amara Packard, City Clerk 
(Approved as to Form):  

 

____________________________ 
Dakota Loomis, City Attorney 

































Baldwin City Police Department 2023 Report Statistics

Jan Feb Mar Apr May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec Total
         PART 1
FELONY OFFENSES: CRIMINAL HOMICIDE/ATT MURDER 0

RAPE/SEX OFFENSES 4 1 2 7

ROBBERY 0

AGGRAVATED ASSAULT/BATTERY 2 1 1 4

DOMESTIC BATTERY 1 1 2

BURGLARY/ ATTEMPTED BURG 1 1 3 5

LARCENY 2 3 1 6

AUTO THEFT 1 1

ARSON 0

CRIMINAL DAMAGE 2 2

OTHER FELONY OFFENSES 1 5 3 1 10
        PART 2

MISD. OFFENSES: SIMPLE ASSAULT/BATTERY 1 2 1 1 1 3 9

SIMPLE ASSAULT-DOMESTIC 2 1 1 1 5

CRIMINAL DAMAGE 2 1 1 1 3 1 3 3 15
 

FORGERY/COUNTERFEITING 1 1

EMBEZZLMENT 1 1

FRAUD 1 1

POSSESSION OF STOLEN PROPERTY 0

WEAPONS OFFENSE 0

SEX OFFENSE 0

NARCOTIC/DRUG VIOLATIONS 5 3 4 3 7 3 3 28

LIQUOR LAW VIOLATIONS 1 1 1 3

DUI 1 1 1 1 1 5

DISORDERLY CONDUCT 1 1 1 3

LARCENY    4 3 3 1 4 1 4 20

VAGRANCY 0

TRESPASS 1 1 1 3

WARRANT ARREST 3 1 1 3 3 3 1 1 16

MISC. OFFENSE 3 5 6 2 1 6 2 25

MISC. REPORTS 14 14 13 16 5 8 10 17 15 112
TOTAL REPORTS 36 42 29 28 18 27 18 43 43 0 0 0 284

ACCIDENTS TOTAL ACCIDENTS 0 3 4 4 2 6 1 2 1 22

TICKETS Speed 1 0 0 4 5 10 4 2 2 28
Failure to stop/Failure to Yield 1 2 10 6 2 5 1 5 4 36
Parking 1 0 1 1 0 0 0 4 5 12
Illegal/No Registration/Expired Tag 2 2 0 2 3 6 5 1 6 27
No DL in Poss./DL restrictions/DWS 1 4 0 2 2 2 4 2 3 20
Insurance 2 3 1 2 1 12 3 4 1 29
Possession Drugs/Paraphernalia 0 0 3 0 1 5 0 1 2 12
MIP/MIC/Open Container 0 0 0 0 2 1 0 0 0 3
DUI/PBT Refusal 0 0 1 1 0 0 0 1 0 3
Seatbelts/Child Restraints 0 0 0 0 7 4 0 0 0 11
Assault 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1 0 2
Disorderly Conduct 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 1
Criminal Damage to Property 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 2
Animal-Neglect/Dog at Large 0 0 0 1 1 0 4 0 3 9
Other 5 2 6 2 2 12 0 4 1 34

TOTAL TICKETS 13 14 22 21 26 58 21 27 27 0 0 0 229


	B 11.07.23 Agenda - Google Docs.pdf
	C.1. 10.17.23 Minutes - Google Docs.pdf
	F.1. Baldwin City Letter 2023.pdf
	F.1. Green Environmental Bid.pdf
	F.1. Honey Creek Disposal.pdf
	G.1.a. SB 163 (Baldwin City).docx.pdf
	G.1.b. SB 163.pdf
	G.2. 404 5th Conditional Use for Short Term Rental - Airbnb.pdf
	Report-Scheduled Claims List.pdf
	Report- Police Department stats 2023 Cases.xls - 2023.pdf

